
 
 

 
 
                                                        

AGENDA
 

For a meeting of the 
ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING COMMITTEE 

to be held on 
FRIDAY, 21 OCTOBER 2005 

at 
9.30 AM 

in the 
COMMITTEE ROOM NO. 1, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 

GRANTHAM 
Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive  

 
Panel 
Members: 

Councillor Pam Bosworth, Councillor Mrs  Joyce Gaffigan, Councillor 
Reginald Howard, Councillor Mrs Maureen Jalili, Councillor Alan 
Parkin, Councillor Mrs Angeline Percival, Councillor Mrs Margery 
Radley, Councillor Frank Turner (Vice-Chairman), Councillor 
Graham Wheat, Councillor Mrs Mary Wheat (Chairman) and 
Councillor Mike Williams 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

 
Malcolm Hall      01476 406118      m.hall@southkesteven.gov.uk 

  
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below. 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 Members are asked to declare an interest in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
  
3. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 7TH OCTOBER 2005 
        (Enclosure) 
  
4. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND VARIATION TO A 

LICENCE 
 a) SHIRLEY CROFT HOTEL, HARROWBY ROAD, GRANTHAM 

 (Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 23rd September)  
 
b) THE STAGGER INN, LONDON ROAD, GRANTHAM 
 (Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 23rd September)  
 
c) THE BURGHLEY ARMS HOTEL, 6 NORTH STREET, BOURNE   

 



 (Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 9th September)  
 
 
d) NAGS HEAD AND LESTERS NIGHTCLUB, 2 ABBEY ROAD, BOURNE   
 (Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 27th September)  
 
e) THE BULL INN, 3 HIGH STREET, RIPPINGALE 

(Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 19th September)  
 

f) THE RED LION, 14 SOUTH STREET, BOURNE   
 (Report circulated with the agenda for the meeting on 23rd September)  
 

g) ARK, 85 WESTGATE, GRANTHAM 
Report ENV328 from the Head of Environmental  
Health and Licensing              (Enclosure)
  

 
  
(THE  APPENDICES TO THE REPORT AT AGENDA ITEM 4 g) ARE ATTACHED 
FOR COMMITTEE MEMBERS ONLY.  IF ANY OTHER MEMBERS WISH TO SEE 
THE SUPPORTING INFORMATION, PLEASE  CONTACT THE HEAD OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND LICENSING) 
 
 
5. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 

decides is urgent 
  
(IF YOU HAVE NOT RETAINED COPIES OF THE REPORTS FOR 4(a) TO (f) 
PLEASE CONTACT MR HALL/MR HADFIELD AS SOON AS POSSIBLE). 
 
 
 



 

1 

MINUTES
ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT 

LICENSING COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 7 OCTOBER 2005

9.30A.M.

 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 
  
Councillor Mrs Gaffigan 
Councillor Howard 
Councillor Mrs Jalili 
Councillor Parkin 
Councillor Mrs Percival 
 

Councillor Mrs Radley 
Councillor Turner (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor H G Wheat 
Councillor Mrs Wheat (Chairman) 
Councillor M Williams 
 

OFFICERS  
 
Head of Environmental Health & Licensing 
Committee Support Officer 
Environmental Health Practitioner  
Scrutiny Support Officer  

 

 
 

The Committee Support Officer advised that as Councillor O’Hare had resigned from 
all panels and committees of the Council, Councillor Mrs Jalili was replacing him at 
this meeting and until the next annual general meeting of the Council.  
 
120. APOLOGIES 
  

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs Bosworth.  
  
121. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  

There were no declarations of interest.  
  
122. MINUTES OF MEETINGS HELD ON 27TH AND 30TH SEPTEMBER 2005 
  

The minutes of the meetings held on 27th and 30th September 2005 were 
confirmed as a correct record of the decisions taken.  

  
123. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - THE 

LORD NELSON, 2 BOURNE ROAD, MORTON, BOURNE 
  

Decision:-  
 
1. That a hearing into the application for conversion and variation to a licence 

in respect of The Lord Nelson, 2 Bourne Road, Morton, Bourne is 
unnecessary;  

Agenda Item 3 



2 

 
and  

 
2. That the Head of Environmental Health and Licensing be authorised to take 

the appropriate action in respect of the licence, in accordance with the 
schedule of licensing objectives submitted with the application. 

 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing circulated an application for a 
premises licence in respect of The Lord Nelson, 2 Bourne Road, Morton, 
Bourne. Negotiations concerning an objection to the application had been 
agreed. As such, he requested that the committee agree that a hearing would 
be unnecessary and that he be permitted to take appropriate action in respect 
of the licence. It was proposed and seconded that a hearing was unnecessary 
with regard to the application. On being put to the vote the proposition was 
carried. 

  
124. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION TO A LICENCE - THE ANGEL INN, 13 CHURCH STREET, 
SOUTH WITHAM, GRANTHAM 

  
Decision:-  
 

1. That a hearing into the application for conversion and variation to a 
licence in respect of The Angel Inn, 13 Church Street, South Witham, 
Grantham is unnecessary;   
 
and  
 

2. That the Head of Environmental Health and Licensing be authorised to 
take the appropriate action in respect of the licence, in accordance with 
the schedule of licensing objectives submitted with the application. 

 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing informed the committee that 
the objection to the application for conversion and variation to a licence in 
respect of The Angel Inn, 13 Church Street, South Witham, Grantham had 
been withdrawn following discussion with the applicant. He therefore requested 
that the committee agree that a hearing would be unnecessary and that he be 
permitted to take appropriate action in respect of the licence. It was proposed 
and seconded that a hearing was unnecessary with regard to the application. 
On being put to the vote the proposition was carried. 

  
125. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION TO A LICENCE - SMITHS', 25 NORTH STREET, BOURNE 
  

Decision:- 
 
That the application for conversion and variation to a licence in respect of 
Smiths’, 25 North Street, Bourne be agreed as applied for, including thirty 
minutes drinking up time and an extension of the exterior licensed area by 
incorporating part of the grassed area for the consumption of alcohol, subject to 

 



3 

the following conditions:-   
 

1. That the applicant works with the interested party and Environmental 
Health Services regarding insulation of the void area and roof spaces to 
minimise noise nuisance to the satisfaction of Environmental Health 
Services.  

 
2. That there be no amplified live music on the premises. 

 
3. CCTV be operated during opening hours and any recordings from the 

system to be made available immediately to the Police after a 
reasonable request and be retained for no less than twenty-eight days. 

 
The committee had before them the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing’s report ENV268 in relation to an application for conversion and 
variation to a licence for Smiths’, North Street, Bourne. A full copy of the 
application was attached at appendix 1, including a map showing the premises. 
An objection from a local resident, including a supporting email from her 
husband, and representations from Environmental Health Services were 
attached at appendix 2.  
 
The Committee Support Officer, in introducing the application, clarified the 
speakers and confirmed that there were no representatives from the police 
present. The applicant and premises manager were present at the meeting, 
accompanied by Counsel, and the Chairman sought and received confirmation 
that they had received and understood the procedure to be followed. A 
representative from Environmental Health Services was also present.  
 
In introducing the report, the Head of Environmental Health and Licensing 
outlined the application and referred to the objections. Further correspondence 
from the objector was circulated, as she was not able to attend the meeting. 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing apologised for the error in the 
report as to the objector’s address.  
 
The applicant’s representative referred to the application details as appended 
to the report. He stated that the request for extension in hours for the sale of 
alcohol had been made in response to customer demand; the extension in 
premises to allow consumption of alcohol on the grassed area was to allow 
parents to supervise their children whilst drinking. He added that many other 
premises within Bourne had been granted extensions. The premises manager 
also spoke to the committee. He explained that when he had been appointed, it 
had been apparent that there were problems with noise leakage and that, in 
cooperation with the neighbouring resident who had objected to this 
application, he had worked on reducing this. Among other changes 
implemented, bins were now emptied during the day and amplification was no 
longer used for quiz announcements and calling time. A major piece of work 
required for a significant reduction in noise leakage was re-lagging of the roof 
but access to the neighbour’s property was required and this had previously 
been denied. Permission had recently been given, however. Upon questioning, 
the manager confirmed that they asked patrons to leave the grassed area by 

 



4 

dusk and children to leave the premises by 20.00hrs.  The committee was also 
reminded that the planning application to convert the premises from a shop to a 
public house, did provide the opportunity for conditions on sound proofing and 
other related issues.  
 
Mrs Evans, representing Environmental Health Services (EHS), spoke about 
the complaints received concerning the premises when it first opened as a 
public house. It had been considered initially that these may have been due to 
certain national events at the time but complaints had continued. These were 
from the objector to this application and had been made concerning the noise 
from the premises. Complaints concerning music had ceased but general noise 
leakage continued.  Mrs Evans had visited the complainant’s home and had 
been amazed at the level of noise leakage from the premises. She supported 
the proposed improvement works but also requested that acoustic insulation be 
installed in the roof as a continued step approach to resolving the problem. 
Upon questioning from the applicant’s representative and the committee, Mrs 
Evans confirmed that monitoring following the improvements to the premises is 
ongoing and that at the time of the planning application, EHS had not 
requested a full acoustic report. The applicant’s representative added that the 
applicant was prepared to have no amplified live music on the premises.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing summed up his report. The 
applicant’s representative also summed up by stating that two of the points of 
objection, i.e. that the extension would add value to the premises and that the 
extension of hours would increase crime and disorder were not relevant and no 
evidence in support of these had been provided. The objection concerning 
noise was genuine, however, and the applicant was prepared to take the 
necessary steps to resolve the situation. Mrs Evans summed up the case of 
EHS. She stated that considerable noise could still leak from the building from 
musical instruments without amplification and that acoustic insulation was 
required. 
 
The officers, applicant, manager and representatives then left the room. During 
the ensuing discussion, it was proposed and seconded that the application be 
agreed as varied subject to conditions regarding improvement works, no 
amplification of live music and CCTV. On being put to the vote, this was 
agreed.  
 
The officers, applicant, manager and representatives then returned to the 
meeting and were advised of the decision, as noted above. The Committee 
Support Officer also advised that the decision could be reviewed at any time by 
any interested party.  

  
(The meeting adjourned 10.50a.m. to 11.13a.m.) 
 
126. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION TO A LICENCE - MODEL FISH BAR & RESTAURANT, 52 
BROAD STREET, STAMFORD 

  
Decision:-  

 



5 

 
That the application for conversion and variation to a licence in respect of 
Model Fish Bar & Restaurant, 52 Broad Street, Stamford be agreed as 
submitted for the following operating hours for late night refreshment:-  
 

23.00hrs to 00.30hrs – Sunday to Tuesday  
23.00hrs to 02.30hrs – Wednesday to Saturday 

 
subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. That the premises shall provide at or near the exits sufficient waste bins 
to enable the disposal of waste food, food containers, wrappings etc. 
and these containers shall be emptied regularly and the contents stored 
securely.  

 
2. That the public area immediately surrounding the premises shall be 

cleared of waste food, food containers, wrapping etc. at the end of 
trading on each day. Such refuse shall be placed in a container 
designed for the storage and disposal of refuse and waste foods which 
shall be constructed, maintained and located so that access to it by 
vermin and unauthorised persons is prevented and arrangements shall 
be made for the regular lawful disposal of their contents.  

 
3. That the existing CCTV installation shall be maintained and all resulting 

tapes shall be kept for a period of no less than 28 days and made 
available to the police if required. 

 
The committee had before them the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing’s report ENV269 in relation to an application for conversion and 
variation to a licence for Model Fish Bar & Restaurant, 52 Broad Street, 
Stamford. A full copy of the application was attached at appendix 1, including a 
map showing the premises. Objections from thirty-eight interested parties were 
attached at appendix 2.  
 
The Committee Support Officer introduced the application and clarified who 
would be speaking for the applicants. Three local residents attended the 
meeting to speak and it was noted that there was no police representative 
present. The applicant, premises manager and representatives were present at 
the meeting and the Chairman sought and received confirmation that they had 
received and understood the procedure to be followed.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing introduced the report and 
drew attention to the representations which concerned mainly issues of noise, 
crime and disorder and public nuisance. In response to a question from the 
applicant’s representative, the officer confirmed that no representations had 
been received from the statutory consultees.  
 
The applicant’s representative stated that for off sales of hot food and drink, the 
applicant would modify the application to 23.00hrs to 00.30hrs – Sunday to 
Tuesday and 23.00hrs to 02.30hrs – Wednesday to Saturday, because they 

 



6 

were aware that another similar outlet in Stamford had been granted such a 
licence. He informed the committee that the fish bar had been operating at the 
premises since the 1930s and that the present owner had been there over 
twenty years. There had seldom been public disorder at the premises hence no 
representations from the statutory bodies. The owner and manager were local 
residents and therefore sensitive to the impact of the fish bar on the community.  
It was suggested that people waiting for taxis at the nearby rank would use the 
fish bar therefore reducing public nuisance. Upon questioning, the manager 
explained what staff did to help with litter and how they dealt with persons 
under the influence of alcohol. The local residents confirmed their concerns 
regarding litter from the fish bar and discussed this with the applicant. The 
applicant was also asked about CCTV, to which he stated that CCTV was 
installed and he would be prepare to record tapes.  
 
The local residents spoke to the committee. The modification to the application 
concerning off sales hours was appreciated but concerns prevailed regarding 
public nuisance late at night. Staggering of closing hours merely prolonged the 
nuisance.  
 
In summing up his report, the Head of Environmental Health and Licensing 
confirmed that the application made no variation to the upstairs restaurant at 
the premises. The applicant’s representative in summing up stated that the 
objections received seemed to be a general opposition to the statute, not this 
application.  
 
The officers, applicant, representatives and members of the public then left the 
room. The committee considered the application and it was proposed and 
seconded that the application, as modified, be agreed subject to conditions 
concerning CCTV and litter.  
 
The officers, applicant, representatives and members of the public then 
returned to the meeting and were advised of the decision, as noted above. The 
Committee Support Officer also advised the applicant that the decision could 
be reviewed at any time by any interested party.  

  
(The meeting adjourned 12.22p.m. – 12.30p.m. Councillor Mrs Jalili did not return to 
the meeting)  
 
127. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION TO A LICENCE - THE TOWN HOUSE, 39 BROAD STREET, 
STAMFORD 

  
Decision:-  
 
That the application for conversion and variation to a licence in respect of The 
Town House, 39 Broad Street, Stamford be agreed as submitted, including 
thirty minutes drinking up time, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. That the existing CCTV installation shall be maintained and all resulting 
tapes shall be kept for a period of no less than 28 days and made 

 



7 

available to the police if required. 
 
2. Door staff to remain present until the close of the premises when open 

after midnight or for extended entertainment. 
 

3. That the number of door staff accord with South Kesteven District 
Council current public entertainment licensing conditions. 

 
4. All external doors and windows shall be kept closed when regulated 

entertainment is being provided except for access and egress and in the 
event of an emergency.  

 
The committee had before them the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing’s report ENV270 in relation to an application for conversion and 
variation to a licence for The Town House, 39 Broad Street, Stamford. A full 
copy of the application was attached as appendix 1, including a map showing 
the premises.  A letter of objection from a local resident was attached as 
appendix 2.  
 
The Committee Support Officer introduced the application and clarified who 
would be speaking for the applicants. The co-licensee was present at the 
meeting, accompanied by Counsel. A local resident was present at the meeting 
to speak. The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing informed the 
committee that the police had made a representation but there was uncertainty 
as to whether or not it was received within the consultation period. The 
applicant agreed to the police making representations and the committee 
allowed the police representative present to make representations at the 
meeting. The Chairman sought and received confirmation that the applicant 
and representative had received and understood the procedure to be followed.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing introduced the report and 
confirmed the variations to the existing licence. Upon questioning from the local 
resident, the officer confirmed the conditions of the current licence.  
 
The applicant’s representative then spoke to the committee. The applicant had 
already discussed with the police their concerns and the applicant considered 
the variations requested to be minor in comparison with other premises. The 
representative spoke in detail concerning the representation from the local 
resident. He stated that the comments were in relation to conditions only and 
that they did appear to be premises specific. He added that there had been no 
other complaints. Upon questioning from the committee, the representative 
confirmed that no crime and disorder incidents had occurred during the present 
ownership.  
 
The police representative then spoke to the committee. He asked that the 
CCTV condition continue and that door staff remain when the premises is open 
past midnight or when open for extended periods of entertainment. This was 
acknowledged by the applicant’s representative.  
 
The local resident then spoke about his objection, which he believed to 

 



8 

represent the views of many other local residents. He stated that music from 
the premises could be heard at his home late at night and that the entrance 
door to the premises was rarely closed. He was concerned that later opening 
hours may increase public nuisance. The applicant’s representative questioned 
the local resident about his evidence and previous objections.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing summed up his report and 
reminded the committee of the variations in the application. The applicant’s 
representative in summing up emphasised his client’s willingness to cooperate 
with the police on their requests.  
 
The officers, co-licensee, representative and members of the public then left 
the room. The committee considered the application and it was proposed and 
seconded that the application be agreed subject to the conditions requested by 
the police and that doors and windows remained closed during public 
entertainment. This was carried on being put to the vote.  
 
The officer, co-licensee, representative and members of the public returned to 
the meeting and were advised of the decision, as noted above. The Committee 
Support Officer also advised the applicant that the decision could be reviewed 
at any time by any interested party.    

  
(The meeting adjourned 1.15p.m. – 2.10p.m. Councillor Parkin did not return to the 
meeting)  
 
128. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION TO A LICENCE - CENTRAL NIGHT CLUB, 9 SILVER LANE, 
STAMFORD 

  
Decision:-  
 
That the application for conversion and variation to a licence in respect of 
Central Night Club, 9 Silver Lane, Stamford be agreed as submitted for the 
following hours for the sale of alcohol:- 
 
 11.00hrs to 02.45hrs – Monday to Sunday 
 
and subject to thirty minutes drinking up time, and subject also to the following:- 
 

1. That there be no admission or readmission after 01.45hrs. 
 
2. Door staff to remain present until the close of the premises when open 

after midnight. 
 

3. That the number of door staff accord with South Kesteven District 
Council public entertainment licensing conditions. 

 
4. That notice be provided to Lincolnshire Police when the premises 

intends opening on a Sunday, Monday or Tuesday 
 

 



9 

The committee had before them the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing’s report ENV274 in relation to an application for conversion and 
variation to a licence for Central Night Club, 9 Silver Lane, Stamford. A full copy 
of the application was attached as appendix 1, including a map showing the 
premises. Representations from 43 local residents were attached at appendix 
2.  
 
The Committee Support Officer introduced the application and clarified who 
would be speaking for the applicant. Three local residents and a police 
representative were at the meeting to speak.  
 
The applicant was present at meeting, accompanied by Counsel, and the 
Chairman sought and received confirmation that they had received and 
understood the procedure to be followed.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing introduced the report and 
informed the committee that the applicant’s representative had indicated that 
some representations, including one from the police, had been received outside 
the consultation period. The applicant’s representative stated that the applicant 
had discussed with the police their representation and did not take issue with 
its time of receipt. The committee were therefore minded to allow the police 
representative to speak in the meeting.  
 
The applicant’s representative gave the case for the application. He stated that 
following the discussions with the police, the application had been modified to 
11.00hrs to 02.45hrs for supply of alcohol. Drinking up time would remain as at 
present. It had been agreed with the police that two weeks notice would be 
given if they intended opening on a Monday, Tuesday or Sunday and that door 
staff remain if the premises was open past midnight or for extended public 
entertainment. The representative then related the application to certain 
sections of the Council’s Licensing Policy and the licensing objectives. He 
added that there were few residential properties nearby. He acknowledged the 
complaints concerning public nuisance but stated that these were too general 
and may not result from the Central Night Club premises. Upon questioning, the 
applicant confirmed that the current policy to close admissions at 1.45a.m. 
would remain.  
 
The police representative then spoke to the committee about his meeting with 
the applicant. The police had no objections concerning the modified opening 
hours. He confirmed the requested conditions, as stated by the applicant’s 
representative previously in the meeting.  
 
The local residents then addressed the committee. They were concerned as to 
the effect on the town when patrons left the premises. Noise from patrons 
leaving reverberated through the streets and the public nuisance was dreadful. 
The applicant was commended, however, on having addressed concerns 
regarding noise expressed to him previously. The residents were questioned by 
the committee on matters for clarification.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing summed up his report and 

 



10 

reminded the committee that the premises was already licensed until 02.00hrs 
and until 02.30hrs for entertainment on Friday and Saturday nights. The 
applicant’s representative also summed up by reiterating the main points of his 
case and that the licensing objectives could be met by the application.  
 
The officers, applicant, representative and members of the public then left the 
meeting. The committee discussed the application and it was proposed and 
seconded that the application, as modified, be agreed subject to the retention 
of the admission policy and the inclusion of conditions relating to door staff and 
giving notice to the police for Sunday, Monday or Tuesday opening. On being 
put to the vote, this was carried.  
 
The officer, applicant, representative and members of the public returned to the 
meeting and were advised of the decision as noted above. The Committee 
Support Officer also advised the applicant that the decision could be reviewed 
at any time by any interested party.  

  
(The meeting adjourned 3.11p.m. – 3.30p.m. Councillor Turner did not return to the 
meeting) 
 
129. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND 

VARIATION OF A LICENCE - THE BASKERVILLES, MAIN STREET, 
BASTON 

  
Decision:-  
 
That the application for conversion and variation to a licence in respect of The 
Baskervilles, Main Street, Baston be agreed as submitted, included thirty 
minutes drinking up time, subject to the following conditions:-  
 

1. That the residents’ certificate and restaurant licence be presented to the 
Head of Environmental Health and Licence prior to the issue of the new 
licence.  

 
2. That the maximum occupancy figure remain at 200 persons for the 

whole premises or a figure agreed subsequently with the fire officer. 
 

3. That notices are displayed within the premises requesting customers to 
leave quietly and have respect for their residential neighbours.  

 
The committee had before them the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing’s report ENV275 in relation to an application for conversion and 
variation to a licence for The Baskervilles, Main Street, Baston. A full copy of 
the application, including a map showing the premises, was attached at 
appendix 1. Representations from interested parties and the police were 
attached at appendix 2.  
 
The Committee Support Officer introduced the application and clarified that the 
applicant would be representing himself. The co-licensee was also present at 
the meeting and the Chairman sought and received confirmation that they had 

 



11 

received and understood the procedure to be followed. It was noted that a 
police representative and a local resident were present at the meeting.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing introduced his report. He 
explained that the objections from local residents had mainly concerned the 
lack of notice displayed on the premises during the application process. The 
applicant confirmed that this has been resolved and he apologised for the 
mistake. Objections remained, however, concerning public nuisance and noise. 
 
The applicant then addressed the committee. He explained that since taking 
over the premises, historical problems concerning disturbance had been 
decreasing. The extension in hours for the sale of alcohol would allow patrons 
to drink after the end of entertainment to provide a gradual departure from the 
premises. This would resolve the problem of people waiting on the street for 
taxis, which were few given the rural location of the premises.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing asked the applicant to clarify 
the current licensing position, as the residents’ certificate and restaurant licence 
had not been submitted with the application. The applicant confirmed that these 
would be provided. The committee asked the applicant about noise leakage. 
He confirmed that they monitored noise themselves and that air conditioning 
had been installed in the function room to stop people opening doors in the 
warmer weather. Windows were locked and could not be opened.  
 
The police representative spoke to the committee regarding the police’s 
objection to the increase in occupancy levels. He asked that this should be 
reviewed. This was supported by the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing.   
 
The local resident spoke to the committee about the history of nuisance from 
music and quiz events at the premises. Previous complaints had had only a 
temporary resolution although there had been improvement in the last year. He 
added that an increase in sale of alcohol hours would delay disturbances until 
later in the night.  
 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing summed up his report, 
reminding the committee that a licence could not be issued without evidence of 
the necessary certificates. The applicant had nothing else to add.  
 
The officers, co-licensee, local resident and police representative then left the 
room. The committee considered the application and it was proposed and 
seconded that the application be agreed as submitted subject to the 
presentation of certificates, the addition of a condition relating to patrons 
leaving the premises and that the occupancy figure remain at 200 unless 
altered by the fire officer. On being put to the vote, this was agreed.  
 
The officers, co-licensee, local resident and police representative then returned 
to the meeting and were advised of the decision as noted above. The 
Committee Support Officer also advised the applicant that the decision could 
be reviewed at any time by any interested party.  

 



12 

  
130. CLOSE OF MEETING 
  

The meeting closed at 4.10p.m.  
  
 

 



 

REPORT TO ALCOHOL & ENTERTAINMENT 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
REPORT OF:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & LICENCING 
 
REPORT NO. ENV 328 
 
DATE:   21 OCTOBER 2005 
 
 
TITLE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION AND VARIATION TO 
A LICENCE – ARK, 85 WESTGATE, GRANTHAM 

FORWARD 
PLAN ITEM: 

 
NOT APPLICABLE 

DATE WHEN 
FIRST 
APPEARED IN 
FORWARD 
PLAN: 

 
 
NOT APPLICABLE 

KEY DECISION 
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 
 
COUNCIL AIMS/ 
PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER NAME 
AND 
DESIGNATION: 

 
COUNCILLOR P MARTIN-MAYHEW (COMMUNITY 
SAFETY) 

CORPORATE 
PRIORITY: 

 
LICENCING CATEGORY ‘Y’ 

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 
SEE REPORT DETAILS 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 
NOT APPLICABLE 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS: 

 
STATEMENT OF LICENCING POLICY 
 

 

Agenda Item 4 



1. INTRODUCTION 
 

The application is for the conversion of an existing Justices’ Licence at a 
public house and to vary the activity hours and operating hours, to include a 
new activity and to increase drinking up time.  The application is attached at 
Appendix 1, together with a map of the premises. 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 transfers responsibility for the licensing of public 
houses from the Magistrates Courts to the local authority. 
 
For a six month period from 7 February 2005, currently licensed business 
premises are able to convert their existing Justices’ Licences into a premises 
licence. However, if the business wishes to vary any of the existing terms and 
conditions of their Justices Licence, the applicant needs to follow a set 
procedure which includes consultation with interested parties, who are able to 
address the variations that have been applied for.  If an interested party 
makes a representation objecting to a variation to the licence, the matter will 
be determined by the Alcohol and Entertainment Licensing Committee. 
 
The Premises Licence, once granted, lies dormant until the second appointed 
day, 24 November 2005, at which time the licence becomes operative and the 
Justices’ Licence is no longer valid. 
 
Ark public house currently holds a Justice’s Licence for retail sale of alcohol 
on and off the premises, a Public Entertainment Licence for the provision of 
public dancing or music or any other entertainment of a like kind. Drinking up 
time is currently 20 minutes. They have applied for a variation in operating 
hours, an additional 10 minutes drinking up time and to provide late night 
refreshment as an additional licensable activity.  
 
The council received 1 letter of representations from the police. The letter was 
received within the 28 day time limit and is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee determines, with regard to the licensing objectives, the 
application concerning the variations that have been requested. 

  
 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

 
Conversion of Existing Justices’ Licence under Transitional Arrangement 

 
The public house currently holds a Justices’ Licence for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption, either on or off the premises between the hours of: 

                     
           On sales 

 
11:00 to 23:00               Weekdays 

 



12:00 to 22:30               Sundays 
12:00 to 22:30               Good Friday 
12:00 to 15:00               Christmas Day 
19:00 to 22:30               Christmas Day 
11:00 to 23:00               New Year’s Eve 
12:00 to 22:30               New Year’s Eve (when on Sunday) 
 
In addition, for New Year’s Eve – Licensee can remain open from the end of 
permitted hours until the start of permitted hours on the following day. 

 
Off sales 
 
08:00 to 23:00               Weekdays 
10:00 to 22:30               Sundays  
12:00 to 15:00               Christmas Day 
19:00 to 22:30               Christmas Day  
08:00 to 22:30               Good Friday     
 
The applicant holds a Public Entertainment Licence for public dancing or 
music or any public entertainment of a like kind. The PEL is issued subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
Standard Condition No.5 (Permitted hours) - The premises shall not be kept 
or used for public music or dancing or other public entertainment of a like kind 
except between the hours of 10.00am and midnight Monday to Wednesday 
and, 10.00am and 1.00am the following morning, Thursday to Saturday. 
 
Standard Condition No.5 (Events held on Sundays) – The premises shall not 
be kept or used for public music or dancing or public entertainment of a like 
kind except between the hours of noon and midnight. 
 
Standard Condition No.7 (Maximum Occupancy Figure) - The fire officer has 
prescribed the following occupancy figure: 500 persons –whole premises. 
 
Application for Variation Requiring Committee Determination 
 
The applicant has applied for a variation in their hours and activities as 
follows: 
 

           Films 
 
10:00 to 00:00          Sunday to Wednesday 
10:00 to 02:00           Thursday to Saturday 

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 

           Live music 
 
10:00 to 00:00    Monday to Sunday 

 



           Recorded music 
           
           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 
Entertainment similar to live music, recorded music, and performance of 
dance 

            
           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 

            
           Provision of facilities for making music 

 
           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 

           Provision of facilities for dancing 
 

           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 

           Provision of facilities for entertainment similar to making music and dancing 
 

           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 
Late night refreshment 
 

           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 

           
           Supply of alcohol 

 



           10:00 to 00:00           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:00           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.00 the 
following day. 
 
In order to accommodate the above variations, the premises opening times 
will be: 

            
           10:00 to 00:30           Sunday to Wednesday 
           10:00 to 02:30           Thursday to Saturday  

 
Bank Holiday Sunday, Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 01.30 the 
following day. 
 
The four licensing objectives of prevention of crime and disorder, public 
safety, prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm, 
have been addressed in the application. The application has been advertised 
and the statutory consultees consulted. 
 
There is a letter of representations from the police. They object to the 
applicants extending their hours for supplying alcohol arguing that the 
applicants have not addressed any of the four licensing objectives in their 
application. 
 
 

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND ASSESSED 
 
 None 
 
 
5. COMMENTS OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND STRATEGIC  
           RESOURCES 
 
 Not applicable 
 
 
6.       COMMENTS OF CORPORATE MANAGER, DEMOCRATIC AND   

     LEGAL SERVICES (MONITORING OFFICER) 
 

As the application has been properly made during the transition period the 
existing licence must be converted to a new premises licence subject to all the 
current conditions and restrictions and any embedded conditions. 

 
In this application the applicant also wishes to simultaneously vary the 
licence. As relevant representations have been received concerning the 
variations, members are required to determine the application regarding the 
variations requested and either grant the application with or without additional 
conditions or to refuse the variation as it considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives 

 



7. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER 
 
 Not applicable 
 
 
8.       CONCLUSION 

 
The application is for the conversion of an existing Justices’ Licence and a 
Public Entertainment Licence at a Grantham town centre public house and to 
vary the activity hours and operating hours and to include a new activity. 
There was a letter of representations from the police based on all licensing 
objectives. 

 
 

9. CONTACT OFFICER 
 

P Harrison, Environmental Health Practitioner (Licensing) 
Tel: 01476 406311    e-mail:  peter.harrison@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 



 
 

 


